
Goodhue County Planning Commission

Government Center - Board Room

509 West 5th St, Red Wing MN 55066

6:00 PM Call Meeting To Order

Approval Of Current Agenda

Approval Of Previous Month's Meeting Minutes

June 15, 2023 Planning Commission DRAFT Meeting Minutes

MINUTES_DRAFT_JUNE_2023.PDF

Conflict/Disclosure Of Interests

Public Hearings:

PUBLIC HEARING: Request For Map Amendment (Rezone)

Request, submitted by Mitchell Rigelman (Applicant) on behalf of Wesley F Moechnig 

Et Al (Owner) to rezone 1.22 acres from A-3 (Urban Fringe District) to R-1 (Suburban 

Residence District). Parcel 32.200.0310. Territorial Road Lake City, MN 55041. Part of 

the SE ¼ of the NW ¼ of Section 31 TWP 112 Range 12 in Florence Township. 

PACPACKET_RIGELMAN.PDF

PUBLIC HEARING: Request For IUP For Up To Four Animal Units On A 5 Acre Parcel 
Zoned R-1 (Suburban Residence District)

Request submitted by Gary Arntson (Owner) for an Interim Use Permit to allow up to 4 

horses to be kept on a parcel zoned R-1, Suburban Residence District. Parcels 

45.024.1901 and 45.024.1100. 37533 County 14 BLVD Dennison, MN 55018. Part of 

the NW ¼ of the SE ¼ of Section 24 TWP 111 Range 18 in Warsaw Township.  

PACPACKET_ARNTSON.PDF

PUBLIC HEARING: Request For CUP For An Event Center And Resort Facility (Villa 
Maria Ventures, LLC (John Rupp, Chief Manager))

Request for a Conditional Use Permit to continue the operations of an Event Center and 

Resort Facility permitted via IUP. The proposal includes remodeling existing structures 

and constructing additions to provide spaces for lodging, cottages, on-site restaurant, 

and event spaces. 29847 County 2 BLVD Frontenac, MN 55026. Parcels 32.160.0040 

and 32.012.0400. Blocks C, D, and E of Garrards South Extension plat and part of the 

SE ¼ of the SW ¼ of Section 12 TWP 112 Range 13 in Florence Township. CR 

(Commercial Recreational District).   

PACPACKET_VILLAMARIA_2023.PDF

Other-Discussion

Adjourn

Anyone interested is invited to attend. Agenda items may be subject to change. 

Goodhue County Land Use Management

w  Goodhue County Government Center w  509 West Fifth Street w  Red Wing w  Minnesota w  55066 w

w  Building w Planning w  Zoning w  Telephone: 651/385 -3104 w Fax: 651/385 -3106 w

1.

Documents:

1.

Documents:

2.

Documents:

3.

Documents:

http://mn-goodhuecounty.civicplus.com/


Goodhue County Planning Commission

Government Center - Board Room

509 West 5th St, Red Wing MN 55066

6:00 PM Call Meeting To Order

Approval Of Current Agenda

Approval Of Previous Month's Meeting Minutes

June 15, 2023 Planning Commission DRAFT Meeting Minutes

MINUTES_DRAFT_JUNE_2023.PDF

Conflict/Disclosure Of Interests

Public Hearings:

PUBLIC HEARING: Request For Map Amendment (Rezone)

Request, submitted by Mitchell Rigelman (Applicant) on behalf of Wesley F Moechnig 

Et Al (Owner) to rezone 1.22 acres from A-3 (Urban Fringe District) to R-1 (Suburban 

Residence District). Parcel 32.200.0310. Territorial Road Lake City, MN 55041. Part of 

the SE ¼ of the NW ¼ of Section 31 TWP 112 Range 12 in Florence Township. 

PACPACKET_RIGELMAN.PDF

PUBLIC HEARING: Request For IUP For Up To Four Animal Units On A 5 Acre Parcel 
Zoned R-1 (Suburban Residence District)

Request submitted by Gary Arntson (Owner) for an Interim Use Permit to allow up to 4 

horses to be kept on a parcel zoned R-1, Suburban Residence District. Parcels 

45.024.1901 and 45.024.1100. 37533 County 14 BLVD Dennison, MN 55018. Part of 

the NW ¼ of the SE ¼ of Section 24 TWP 111 Range 18 in Warsaw Township.  

PACPACKET_ARNTSON.PDF

PUBLIC HEARING: Request For CUP For An Event Center And Resort Facility (Villa 
Maria Ventures, LLC (John Rupp, Chief Manager))

Request for a Conditional Use Permit to continue the operations of an Event Center and 

Resort Facility permitted via IUP. The proposal includes remodeling existing structures 

and constructing additions to provide spaces for lodging, cottages, on-site restaurant, 

and event spaces. 29847 County 2 BLVD Frontenac, MN 55026. Parcels 32.160.0040 

and 32.012.0400. Blocks C, D, and E of Garrards South Extension plat and part of the 

SE ¼ of the SW ¼ of Section 12 TWP 112 Range 13 in Florence Township. CR 

(Commercial Recreational District).   

PACPACKET_VILLAMARIA_2023.PDF

Other-Discussion

Adjourn

Anyone interested is invited to attend. Agenda items may be subject to change. 

Goodhue County Land Use Management

w  Goodhue County Government Center w  509 West Fifth Street w  Red Wing w  Minnesota w  55066 w

w  Building w Planning w  Zoning w  Telephone: 651/385 -3104 w Fax: 651/385 -3106 w

1.

Documents:

1.

Documents:

2.

Documents:

3.

Documents:

https://co.goodhue.mn.us/65def75c-f06e-4048-89a0-e543b16ae9f2


Page 1 
PLANNING ADVISORY COMMISSION  

GOODHUE COUNTY, MN   
 June 15, 2023 MEETING MINUTES  

DRAFT 
________________________________________________________________ 

 
The meeting of the Goodhue County Planning Advisory Commission was called to order at 6:00 
PM by Vice-Chair Richard Nystuen at the Goodhue County Government Center in Red Wing. 
Roll Call 
Commissioners Present: Tom Gale, Richard Miller, Darwin Fox, Marc Huneke (arrived at 6:03 
PM), Howard Stenerson, Richard Nystuen  
Commissioners Absent: Chris Buck, Todd Greseth 
Staff Present: Land Use Director Lisa Hanni, Zoning Administrator Samantha Pierret, and 
Zoning Administrative Assistant Patty Field 
 
1. Approval of Agenda 

 

1Motion by Commissioner Miller; seconded by Commissioner Fox to approve the meeting 
agenda. 
 
Motion carried 5:0 
 

2. Approval of Minutes  
 
2Motion by Commissioner Gale; seconded by Commissioner Miller to approve the previous 
month’s meeting minutes. 
 
Motion carried 5:0  
 

3. Conflict/Disclosure of Interest  
 

There were no reported conflicts/disclosures of interest.    
 

4. Public Hearings  
 
PUBLIC HEARING: Request for Map Amendment (Rezone) 
Request, submitted by Connie Bodeker (Owner) to rezone 46.89 acres from A-2 (General 
Agriculture District) to R-1 (Suburban Residence District). Parcel 28.031.1201. TBD 338th Street 
Way Cannon Falls, MN 55009. Part of the SW ¼ of the SE ¼ of Section 31 TWP 112 Range 17 in 
Cannon Falls Township.  
 
Pierret presented the staff report and attachments. 
 
Commissioner Stenerson asked for clarification on the number of additional houses that might 
be built. 
   
Pierret stated they  have proposed up to three additional building sites, bringing the total to 22 
houses in the section. 



Page 2 
PLANNING ADVISORY COMMISSION  

GOODHUE COUNTY, MN   
 June 15, 2023 MEETING MINUTES  

DRAFT 
________________________________________________________________ 

 
Bob Stalberger, Realtor representing Ms. Bodeker stated they are hoping to rezone the 
property to make the best use of the property. Their idea was one to three houses but would be 
perfectly fine with one. Right now the land is not being utilized and it would be more tax base 
for the County and Township to have a dwelling on the land.   
   
Vice-Chair Nystuen Opened the Public Hearing 
 
Stanley Bryczek, 6825 338th Street Way, Cannon Falls, stated he is totally against this request. 
They bought their property as agricultural, where they would be able to hunt and not be close 
to neighbors. He feels it is wrong to put more houses in the area. When he bought his land, 
there were only supposed to be so many houses in the section, and that was it. Now they want 
to add more. Someone in the next section over just got approved for three more houses. Pretty 
soon it will be all houses, just like a city. Roads will be widened and things put in that will cost 
the residents more.   
 
Dave Sucher, 11460 367th Street, Cannon Falls, asked if the board would answer the questions 
raised as to why more houses have been put in these townships.   
 
Vice-Chair Nystuen stated that this board is the level before the Board of Commissioners. The 
Board of Commissioners will make the final decision. This board gives the Board of 
Commissioners a recommendation. This board listens to each request and then each member 
gets to vote on the request.  
 
3After Vice-Chair Nystuen called three times for comments it was moved by 
Commissioner Miller and seconded by Commissioner Huneke to close the Public 
Hearing. 
 
Motion carried 6:0 
 
Bob Stalberger (Applicant’s Representative) stated that there is already an accessory building 
on the property. Based on the way the property is laid out, this won’t change Mr. Bryczek’s 
ability to hunt on his property because there is still a good distance from where they could 
build a house from his property line.     
 
Commissioner Stenerson said there is always potential, once you add more dwellings, for 
neighbor issues or conflicts. The A-1, A-2, and A-3 zones were established many years ago with 
each zone being assigned a certain number of houses that could be built in each zone. Every 
time we make an exception, we are changing density.     
 
Hanni reminded the Board that this section has about a half-mile of extra width. It’s bigger 
than a normal section.  
 
Commissioner Stenerson said he could see if there were one or two more houses, but there are 
10 more houses than allowed in this section already. The reason for this request appears to be 
for financial benefit and they are not supposed to use that as criteria to approve a request. 



Page 3 
PLANNING ADVISORY COMMISSION  

GOODHUE COUNTY, MN   
 June 15, 2023 MEETING MINUTES  

DRAFT 
________________________________________________________________ 

 
Hanni stated that the Board needs to look at the individual area. She doesn’t know that they 
could get three dwellings on the property with accessibility requirements. They also need to 
look at the individual parcels to see the pros and cons and what could happen there.  
 
Commissioner Fox stated that in looking at all the different things, he has no way he could 
support this. He would make a motion to deny this request.   
 
Commissioner Stenerson seconded the denial. The reason for the denial is that this would make 
the section ten dwellings over the acceptable density.   
 
Commissioner Gale said he had to buy 40 acres to be allowed to build. He feels that everyone 
should stay as close to that as possible.   
 
Bob Stalberger (Applicant’s Representative) stated that looking at the map and the required 
setbacks he is unsure three houses could fit here. Forty-acre lot sizes were mentioned, this 
property is 46 acres. They also talked about going over density when the section is already 
well over the maximum density. Things have changed since the rule of 12 houses went into 
place. COVID has happened and more people want to be out in the country and there is limited 
ability to build and live out in the country. Aside from profitability, there is a strong demand 
for people who want to live in the country and there isn’t that ability in Goodhue County 
because of the rules that are in place. The only spot to build on would be at the dead-end road 
where it comes into the property. It is the best use of this property to have a dwelling on it 
versus it sitting there empty.      
 
Commissioner Miller stated that he thinks this is something that will come up more and more 
as they go forward. Some properties are not generating tax income for the Township and some 
people want to live on that property. It is over 40 acres. You need 35 acres in A-3 to do build a 
dwelling. In his view, people have a right to use their property as they see fit. It seems to him 
that if a dwelling was placed on this site that already has an accessory building, it would not 
destroy the neighborhood.   
 
Commissioner Stenerson asked Commissioner Fox if he would be willing to add some findings 
of facts to their motion.  Based on a couple of things, one is a concern over the increased 
number of septic systems in the area. The second would be density well over the established 
maximum. The volume of development we are seeing in that section would be better served in 
a metropolitan or city area where there are city or public services available. Third, a long-
term policy has been established on this board to avoid spot zoning. And number four, the 
Board cannot approve a request simply because it will be more financially beneficial for the 
owner.   
Commissioner Fox agreed with Commissioner Stenerson on adding these findings of fact to 
their decision.             
  
4It was moved by Commissioner Fox and seconded by Commissioner Stenerson for 
the Planning Advisory Commission to: 

• adopt the staff report into the record; 



Page 4 
PLANNING ADVISORY COMMISSION  

GOODHUE COUNTY, MN   
 June 15, 2023 MEETING MINUTES  

DRAFT 
________________________________________________________________ 
• accept the application, testimony, exhibits, and other evidence presented into the record; and 

recommend that the County Board of Commissioners DENY the map amendment request from 
Connie Bodeker (Property Owner) to rezone 46.89 acres from A2 (General Agriculture District) to R1 
(Suburban Residence District). 

Motion carried 5:1 (Commissioner Miller dissented) 

PUBLIC HEARING: “McNamara Hay Creek Farm” Preliminary and Final Plat Review 
Request submitted by Richard McNamara (Owner) for Preliminary and Final Plat review of the 
proposed McNamara Hay Creek Farm Plat comprising approximately 96.24 acres. Parcels 
34.019.0300 and 34.020.1600. Old Church Road Red Wing, MN 55066. The S ½ of the NE ¼ and 
part of the SE ¼ of the NW ¼ of Section 19 TWP 112 Range 14 and part of the SW ¼ of the NW ¼ of 
Section 20 TWP 112 Range 14 all in Hay Creek Township. A-2 Zoned District.  
 
Pierret presented the staff report and attachments.  

Hanni stated that these lots are Outlots and are not buildable lots. The land could be split one 
parcel at a time but they would need to wait 6 months between each split. The best way, 
especially when you get some of these complicated splits, is to plat it. This is a good process to 
clean up legal descriptions.    

Commissioner Stenerson asked if this started as cleaning up survey information and if the land 
was broken into identifiable sections for future planning.  

Hanni stated that is correct. She said if you look at the air photos, the Outlots follow what is 
being farmed and split off bluffland and woods.   

Commissioner Stenerson asked what the reason was for bringing plats before the board rather 
than just approving it as a correction to the surveying. 

Hanni stated there are two reasons for this coming before the board. The applicant wants to 
create one lot that goes across a section line. And two, anytime we are going to dedicate 
something to the public such as a road, it should go through a public meeting.   

Commissioner Stenerson asked if the Applicant was giving some land to the Township as road 
right-of-way. 

Hanni stated that he is dedicating some right-of-way to the Township on Old Church Road.  

Vice-Chair Nystuen Opened the Public Hearing 

Nancy Taylor, 25090 Old Church Road, Red Wing wanted to know if all of this land is platted 
could a house be built here in the future?     

Pierret stated that the lots will be platted as Outlots, and Outlots are not buildable. To be able 
to build on this land, someone would have to come back to this Board and request the land be 
re-platted and rezoned due to density restrictions in the section.  



Page 5 
PLANNING ADVISORY COMMISSION  

GOODHUE COUNTY, MN   
 June 15, 2023 MEETING MINUTES  

DRAFT 
________________________________________________________________ 

Dave Sucher, 11460 367th Street, Cannon Falls said he grew up in this area and stated that 
most of Outlot C is a ditch. Staff said you can’t build on it so what is the objective with this plat?  
Is it to reduce his taxes?   

The Board did not believe that taxes would be reduced due to this plat.   

Mr. Sucher stated that Outlot C is a ditch that goes all the way down to Hay Creek. Outlot E is 
a hillside with steep slopes. Outlot D and Outlot B are farmland. The owner approached him 
regarding access to the farmland. Currently, the owner has access to his farmland via the 1.85-
acre property along Old Church Road owned by David Sucher & Avis Sucher LT. Mr. Sucher 
told the owner that there is no easement recorded for access over the Sucher land.  

Hanni stated that he does show an easement from Outlot C to access Outlot E.   

Mr. Sucher agreed but right now the only access to proposed Outlot C is across his land. Mr. 
Sucher will not grant an easement for access to the owner. He believes the Applicant’s objective 
is to fill in the ditch and go along parallel to his property line to get access to Outlot B and then 
up to Outlot D. 

Randy Taylor, 25090 Old Church Road, Red Wing stated that on the eastern boundary of 
Outlot D, there is a long driveway that goes back to a dwelling where a young couple lives. Mr. 
McNamara has been using their driveway, which they told him he could not use, to get access 
to proposed Outlot D. He questioned why the plat is being proposed.   

Ryan Tipcke, 23170 325th Street, Red Wing asked if there was ever legal access granted to 
Outlot B when Mr. McNamara purchased his property.   

Pierret stated that the Zoning Ordinance only requires road frontage to approve plats and 
splits. Staff does not check if there is physical access to the land. When it comes to physical 
access, that becomes a civil issue between neighbors.   
5After Vice-Chair Nystuen called three times for comments it was moved by 
Commissioner Stenerson and seconded by Commissioner Huneke to close the 
Public Hearing. 
 
Motion carried 6:0 
Commissioner Stenerson stated he assumes that all of these properties meet the legal definition 
of access. 

Hanni stated yes, they all have frontage or an easement from a public road.   

Pierret indicated that regarding splits, it has become common to split wooded land from 
tillable land.   

Commissioner Stenerson commented that from a practical point of view if he wants to split 
and sell all of these, it would be up to the buyer to ensure they have access to the property and 
not the County’s responsibility, correct?   



Page 6 
PLANNING ADVISORY COMMISSION  

GOODHUE COUNTY, MN   
 June 15, 2023 MEETING MINUTES  

DRAFT 
________________________________________________________________ 

Hanni stated that is correct.   

Commissioner Stenerson said there is the option to table this until we hear from the Applicant 
on how he plans to get access and why he is splitting the land. As far as the taxes, he is not a 
tax official, but he has two parcels like this and when he split them, his taxes went up. They are 
not changing anything and he cannot do anything different with this property other than 
change ownership.     

Commissioner Gale stated if you can’t pasture the ground, all you are doing is paying taxes on 
something you may have no purpose for. If they want to separate the tillable land and let 
someone else have the rest of it, that is probably part of the reason why they are going in this 
direction.     

Commissioner Miller stated that technically the Applicant could do this one parcel at a time 
without coming to the Board. 

Hanni agreed but noted there is a 6 month waiting period between each split.   

6It was moved by Commissioner Miller and seconded by Commissioner Stenerson for 
the Planning Advisory Commission to: 

• adopt the staff report into the record; 
• accept the application, testimony, exhibits, and other evidence presented into the record; 
 and 

Recommend that the County Board of Commissioners APPROVE the request submitted by 
Richard McNamara for the Preliminary and Final Plat of the proposed “McNamara Hay Creek 
Farm” Plat comprising approximately 91.08 acres.  
Motion carried 6:0 

Commissioner Huneke recused himself from the board for the following request.   

PUBLIC HEARING: “Kolshorn Ridge Second” Preliminary and Final Plat Review 
Request submitted by Ryan and Christyn Tipcke (Owners) for Preliminary and Final Plat review of the 
proposed Kolshorn Ridge Second Plat comprising approximately 21.36 acres. Parcels 34.125.0010, 
34.125.0020, 34.019.2802, 34.125.0011 and 34.030.0300. TBD Kolshorn Road Red Wing, MN 55066. 
Lot 1 Block 1 and Outlot A of the Kolshorn Ridge Addition, Part of the S ½ of the SE ¼ Section 19 
TWP 112 Range 14 and Part of the N ½ of the NE ¼ of Section 30 TWP 112 Range 14 all in Hay Creek 
Township. A-2 Zoned District.  

Pierret presented the staff report and attachments. 
 
Ryan Tipcke (Applicant) stated the land is being replatted to clean up and simplify the legal 
description.    
 
Commissioner Stenerson asked if this is changing how he accesses the building site he has in Section 
30. Is it giving you access where you didn’t have it before? 

Mr. Tipcke stated he has access to it now. He is asking to replat it to clean up the legal descriptions.   



Page 7 
PLANNING ADVISORY COMMISSION  

GOODHUE COUNTY, MN   
 June 15, 2023 MEETING MINUTES  

DRAFT 
________________________________________________________________ 

Commissioner Stenerson stated this doesn’t change anything, as far as the number of houses allowed 
in the section or anything like that, correct? 

Pierret stated that is correct.   

Commissioner Miller said it just makes it one unit.   

Vice-Chair Nystuen Opened the Public Hearing 

No one spoke for or against the request.   
 
7After Vice-Chair Nystuen called three times for comments it was moved by 
Commissioner Fox and seconded by Commissioner Miller to close the Public 
Hearing. 

Motion carried 5:0 (Commissioner Huneke abstained) 
8It was moved by Commissioner Gale and seconded by Commissioner Miller for the 
Planning Advisory Commission to: 

• adopt the staff report into the record; 
• accept the application, testimony, exhibits, and other evidence presented into the record;  

and 
Recommend that the County Board of Commissioners APPROVE the request submitted by 
Ryan and Christyn Tipcke for the Preliminary and Final Plat of the proposed “Kolshorn Ridge 
Second” Plat comprising approximately 21.36 acres. 
 
Motion carried 5:0 (Commissioner Huneke abstained) 
 
Commissioner Huneke returned to the board.   

PUBLIC HEARING: Consider Goodhue County Zoning Ordinance Updates 
Proposed amendments to Article 10 (Definitions), Article 11 (Performance Standards), and Article 20 
(Table of Uses) to amend definitions for Farm and Agricultural Operation, add a definition for Rural 
Tourism, remove Non-Agricultural Uses Associated with Agri-Tourism and replace with Rural 
Tourism, amend performance standards and the Table of Uses to correlate with the addition of Rural 
Tourism. 

Pierret presented some background on these updates. The ordinance subcommittee has met 
twice this year to discuss this. Staff has also brought this proposal to the full Planning 
Commission twice. This request is to have the public hearing to replace Non-Agricultural Uses 
Associated with Agricultural Tourism with Rural Tourism. Non-Agricultural Uses Associated 
with Agricultural Tourism is how we have been permitting our Wedding Event Centers and 
things like that. This hasn’t been working so we decided to go with Rural Tourism. Some 
definitions were also amended for Agricultural Operations to add “a property primarily used 
for” and for Agricultural Processing.  The Table of Uses was also updated with Rural Tourism 
and with the removal of Educational Farm Retreat because it is very much like an Air B&B and 
the county does not regulate these. Also, clarifies some of the different uses of the Performance 
Standards for Rural Tourism such as Bed & Breakfast and Retreat Centers. The biggest point 



Page 8 
PLANNING ADVISORY COMMISSION  

GOODHUE COUNTY, MN   
 June 15, 2023 MEETING MINUTES  

DRAFT 
________________________________________________________________ 

of discussion that they will need clarification on is whether to allow Rural Tourism as a 
Conditional Use or Interim Use in the A-1 district or not. This is also a time when they can 
discuss anything else that goes with this.      

Commissioner Stenerson said that in one spot in the language, under Rural Tourism, it includes A-1.  
Then in the table, we have not permitted Retreat Centers. Is that because Rural Tourism and Retreat 
Centers are not the same?   

Pierret stated she left everything as it currently is in the Table of Uses. Retreat Centers are currently 
not permitted in the A-1 District. Non-Agricultural Uses Associated with Agriculural Tourism are 
currently conditional uses in A-1. 

Commissioner Stenerson stated that a Retreat Center involves somebody staying overnight where a 
venue is different, it is entertainment. 

Hanni said she believes that at Retreat Centers you can stay there for up to a week.             

Commissioner Miller said he had one item he would like to discuss.  Since they are talking about 
Wedding Venues, he thinks they should only be an IUP rather than a CUP.  This would allow the 
County and the Township to review it in the event it changes hands.   

Commissioner Stenerson agreed with Commissioner Miller on the IUP.  However, he recalled an 
issue where they had to change their permitting policy because nobody could get financing to build a 
building with an IUP. He thinks the IUP gives them a lot more control but is concerned about 
running into a financing problem if they use an IUP on these.     

Commissioner Miller said that is not the Board’s problem.   

Hanni stated that was for a solar project.   

Vice-Chair Nystuen Opened the Public Hearing 

Michelle Schroeder, 12100 Wild Turkey Road, Welch stated she is concerned about Rural Tourism 
where she lives. They were recently notified that someone purchased a neighbor’s farm for the sole 
purpose of a business opportunity and do not plan on living there. She is concerned that something 
like this would be allowed in her neighborhood. With Rural Tourism, does that mean a neighbor can 
get a bird sanctuary and have cars from the cities come by and run around the lawn every day past 
all of the neighbors? The road is a dirt road. She did not move there to a quiet neighborhood, with no 
neighbors around, to have traffic come in.   

Commissioner Stenerson asked Ms. Schroeder if she knows what zone she lives in.   

Ms. Schroeder stated she is in A-1.   

Commissioner Stenerson said Ms. Schroeder mentioned traffic. Other than traffic, is there anything 
more she could add as far as how she feels it is going to affect her? Where does she see the harm? 

Ms. Schroeder stated that they have a very small gravel road with blind entrances. There are spots 
on the road where you cannot have two cars pass each other at the same time. There is always a lot 



Page 9 
PLANNING ADVISORY COMMISSION  

GOODHUE COUNTY, MN   
 June 15, 2023 MEETING MINUTES  

DRAFT 
________________________________________________________________ 

of farm equipment on the road. It has been private for generations and there is more and more 
traffic every day. What is happening up the road from them now is going to grow they fear.   

Jim Derosier, 13075 Wild Turkey Road, Welch. He is concerned about Agricultural Tourism. He lives 
next door to this facility and they plan to have 75 to 110 students a week at a Folk School they will be 
constructing. Real estate agents have told him he would lose 30% of his market value. His insurance 
company told him he needs to increase his umbrella policy from 1.5 million dollars to 5 million 
dollars because of the risks. He wants to know how these definitions will affect Agricultural Tourism.  
The township board clerk, Jim Hedeen, recommended they come to talk to this board tonight. It’s a 
concern in the neighborhood. There is a petition going around the neighborhood and right now 42 
out of 45 people are against it. Traffic on the roads, maintenance of the roads, and overall safety are 
concerns.   

Chuck Zervas, 29551 130th Avenue, Welch stated he has a concern with the changes to the language.  
Especially with the situation they are facing with the new property owners. This public hearing just 
came to their attention on Tuesday. He wanted to know if they would have an opportunity to review 
the proposed changes as he would like more time to review what the changes are. There are 
environmental concerns. They are talking about building housing facilities, which would require 
greater water use and septic systems. Safety and security will be affected because they will be 
bringing in people from all over the place. Even though this is agricultural property, it is still their 
neighborhood. It’s where they live. He does not think it is right that any taxpayer can come in and 
change the livelihood of many of the residents. Tourism is great, but not in their neighborhood. They 
didn’t move to this area to have strangers coming in and affecting their safety and security. 

Tom Baumgart, 29431 130th Avenue, Welch, stated he is very concerned about what they have been 
told about this project. A meeting was held where they invited some of the neighbors, but not all of 
the neighbors.  They plan on having a dormitory with a commercial kitchen, a greenhouse, day 
classes, and week-long classes, enhanced by camping and/or vehicle camping with a youth-type 
setting. The increased traffic and dust pollution is a concern, but also the security on the road of 
people driving by and posting it on Facebook and showing other people. As Facebook followers 
grow, they are looking more and more at the area and the people in the area. He has not been able to 
find a description of a Folk Home, and there is nothing on the county list indicating a Folk Home.  
That is why they are concerned. How many people can they have, what can they do and when can 
they do it? Until this is straightened out, they would like to put a restriction and a formal request in 
to put a cap that the owners are there an hour before an event, there during the entire time of the 
event, and there an hour afterward, or until the last person leaves. We all object to a business being 
put in our neighborhood. They are asking the county to put a hold on this. They asked Vasa 
Township and whatever direction they are given today they will follow up on.   

Commissioner Stenerson stated that he wanted to make sure that people understand that the board 
is not here to change an ordinance one way or the other for something we have not even seen as a 
request. We don’t even know what you are talking about. He is glad the group is there as the board 
talks about the general concepts of ordinances and how it affects people. He is glad they are sharing 
this information with the board but wanted to make sure that everyone understands that they are 
not there tonight to act on a certain proposal, they are just designing ordinances. He said he is 
curious if anyone who came to the meeting tonight to discuss this is in an A-1 zone and their primary 



Page 10 
PLANNING ADVISORY COMMISSION  

GOODHUE COUNTY, MN   
 June 15, 2023 MEETING MINUTES  

DRAFT 
________________________________________________________________ 

occupation is Agriculture.  If anyone is a full-time Agriculture producer, he would appreciate 
hearing from them as well. 

Mr. Baumgart stated that they were told by Vasa Township to come to this meeting to discuss. They 
were told that Goodhue County is sponsoring an Agricultural Artistic Sponsorship and that the 
people who own this land are working with the Red Wing Farmers Market and the Red Wing Arts 
for subsidizing. It is their understanding they have been planning this for a while and they want to 
know if they have an event scheduled. 

Hanni stated the Red Wing Arts Council would not be the County. Red Wing Arts Council does 
different things around the area. They have had some issues where they have promoted some things 
and not had the proper permits.        

Mr. Baumgart stated that is what they are concerned about. They told us there would be no alcohol 
being served, but they are bringing alcohol to a different venue. They are not doing it directly, they 
are having other people serve it. They would like some direction on how they should proceed to get 
this to the commissioners in whatever format they need because they are concerned that the changes 
that are being discussed will make it easier for them to have this Folk School.   

Commissioner Fox stated that right now with Non-Agricultural Tourism in place, someone could 
apply for something and it would be easier than it would be if they made the proposed changes to the 
ordinance. Everyone is spending a lot of time voicing opinions but the Planning Advisory 
Commission is trying to tighten up the language so there is better control with an Interim Use 
Permit. If people tell them they don’t want the Planning Advisory Commission to move forward, the 
applicant would have an easier time getting the Folk School approved without these changes. Right 
now, with Non-Agricultural Tourism, someone could come in with almost anything. If they have a 
better definition, they can say they want an Interim Use Permit, or they can say they can’t figure out 
how this is going to fit.      

Commissioner Miller said they are trying to tighten up the ordinances and revise the language. He 
also indicated that he does not think there is anything they could do about this issue at present. 

Commissioner Fox said that right now they know nothing about this because nobody has brought 
anything to this group.  

Mr. Baumgart asked if they come forward to request a Conditional Use Permit or an Interim Use 
Permit, who do they go to to ask for that?   

Hanni stated that would be this group and then it would go to a public hearing.   

Commissioner Fox said they can’t comment on something that they haven’t even brought forward.     

Mr. Baumgart stated he is glad they are asking. They were told by Vasa to come here first because 
they just got the notice of the public hearing and said to go to this meeting.   

Commissioner Stenerson said he is glad they are here, but they also need to understand that this 
board has no authority on that one issue. It is important that Vasa is directing them here because 
they are making decisions on whether to tighten the ordinance or not. And it is very helpful for them 



Page 11 
PLANNING ADVISORY COMMISSION  

GOODHUE COUNTY, MN   
 June 15, 2023 MEETING MINUTES  

DRAFT 
________________________________________________________________ 

to hear their concerns. Even though the Board cannot fix their particular problem, it gives the Board 
knowledge about how it is affecting people when they design ordinances. He would direct them to 
take concerns about something they have heard to Staff so something doesn’t happen without 
permits. That’s a whole separate issue, staff can assist in enforcing the ordinance but this board 
cannot because a permit has not been applied for. The information provided helps them determine if 
they should be tightening up the ordinances.    

Chuck Zervas said the point is they had no idea why these changes were being made until it was just 
mentioned. They do not want this in their neighborhood. They are just wanting to make sure these 
changes are not going to make things easier for the applicant. It is clear that it is not going to make 
it easier. He would like to take some time to read it and see if he can understand it.       

Michelle Schroeder asked what should a homeowner do if this business venture just keeps doing 
things. Can the homeowners come and request a meeting or have a hearing to ask what they should 
do about it? 

Vice-Chair Nystuen said that those questions should be directed to the County Staff. They address 
issues if there is something that is non-conforming or if someone is not following the rules. 

Ms. Schroeder asked what about the Arts Board.   

Hanni stated staff would contact Red Wing Arts to ensure future arts events have the proper 
permits.   

Ms. Schroeder stated that they can only have two permitted events a year. 

Hanni stated that is what they are talking about now. They are trying to clarify the language so 
there is less interpretation and it’s a little bit clearer and events that happen more than twice per 
year come through the Conditional Use Permit process. 

Ms. Schroeder said they could do an event every month and call it something different.     

Hanni stated at this point she would caution against any more discussion on something that the 
board has not seen. 

Commissioner Huneke indicated that Staff can’t actively search the County for non-conforming 
properties or uses. Most of the board members here had no idea what all is going on there. That’s 
when you would call Staff, tell them what is happening and ask if they have the proper permits. That 
will draw Staff’s attention to it and they can investigate further. If there is something that you don’t 
think is right, that would be where you would start.   

Vice-Chair Nystuen stated they are trying to address at this public hearing about changing the 
ordinance, not specific issues. They do appreciate everyone bringing it up, but the board doesn’t 
know anything about it. 

Hanni stated Folk Schools are not defined in the County Ordinance. As they get into the discussion of 
what Rural Tourism is, they try not to pin down specifics because it changes so much.  There is some 
interpretation of that.   



Page 12 
PLANNING ADVISORY COMMISSION  

GOODHUE COUNTY, MN   
 June 15, 2023 MEETING MINUTES  

DRAFT 
________________________________________________________________ 

9After Vice-Chair Nystuen called three times for comments it was moved by 
Commissioner Huneke and seconded by Commissioner Miller to close the Public 
Hearing. 
 
Motion carried 6:0 

Commissioner Stenerson said he would like to come back to the argument he had on the first issue.  
When it comes to zoning, especially A-1, when they have a zone that they restrict to four residences, 
he has a problem anytime they just approve any form of request that is going to bring in large 
numbers of people, whether it’s a venue or retreat center or something else. He doesn’t think they are 
wrong for being in the county, he just feels there is a right place for them. He is not okay with using 
the highly protected A-1 zone. In A-2, probably in some places but not in others. He is okay with a 
Conditional Use Permit in an A-2. He is not in support of having venues in an A-1 Zone. If it is not 
directly related to Agriculture, it should not be in an A-1. 

Commissioner Miller said he would not have a problem with that.  But they would have to eliminate 
everything that is under “Institutional” in the Table of Uses from A-1. That includes community 
buildings, churches, cemeteries, memorial gardens, public schools, private schools, nursery schools, 
and funeral homes.   

Commissioner Stenerson said he doesn’t know about cemeteries, but anything that brings in large 
groups of people regularly probably doesn’t belong in the A-1. 

Commissioner Miller said he does not have a problem restricting it, but then you need to restrict 
everything from it, not be selective.   

Hanni said to just keep in mind that if they don’t allow Rural Tourism in A-1, they are making 
several existing businesses non-conforming. That means they won’t be able to expand or do anything 
beyond their current operations. They have the Conditional Use and Interim Use process, which 
some were denied tonight and some were approved tonight. This is where they get into the details 
about whether it fits in the area. That is why there are public hearings, to get feedback. As far as the 
County is concerned, they like to be able to give landowners opportunities to do things. It is up to the 
board, the neighbors, and the public to say “Does this fit?”, why does it or why doesn’t it? She is 
relying on the Board having a public hearing and making some strong decisions one way or the 
other.      

Commissioner Huneke agreed. It’s a big County with different landscapes from one end to the other.  
He does not think they can blanket deny or blanket accept anything. It comes to this Board for a 
decision and the recommendation is passed on to the County Commissioners. He would not be in 
favor of canceling everything in A-1.  Going more with Interim Uses so it can’t just start changing 
hands all of a sudden may be the better option.   

Commissioner Stenerson asked about the businesses that are already operating. They have changed 
policies in the past as the needs have changed. Yes, it has made people non-conforming or they 
cannot expand but maybe sometimes it should cease or they would have to come in with a variance 
request to explain why they should be the exception. He is concerned with just depending on the 
Conditional Use Permit process instead of absolute standards. If there were absolute standards, it 
makes it easier for anyone who wants to open a business to come in and ask if it is allowed or not. If 



Page 13 
PLANNING ADVISORY COMMISSION  

GOODHUE COUNTY, MN   
 June 15, 2023 MEETING MINUTES  

DRAFT 
________________________________________________________________ 

the ordinance states that they accept this type of operation but want it restricted or funneled to 
certain areas, the investors will have to look into those areas.  There is some advantage to just 
saying no to certain things. The goal is to protect the ability to continue to make this a major 
agricultural production community.   
10It was moved by Commissioner Miller and seconded by Commissioner Fox for the 
Planning Advisory Commission to: 

adopt the staff report into the record, and recommend the County Board of Commissioners 
APPROVE the amendments to Articles 10 (Definitions), 11 (Performance Standards), and 20 
(Table of Uses). With one change to update the Conditional Use Permit for all Wedding Venues, 
under Rural Tourism, to an Interim Use Permit, in all zones.   

Hanni said they currently have it as CUP/IUP.  In the past, depending on what the request 
was, the Board has given Staff direction that they don’t want it as a CUP and recommended 
approval as an IUP.  That gives the board a little flexibility too, because some of the requests 
might be a better fit as a CUP.   

Commissioner Miller stated he is fine with changing it to CUP/IUP. 

Commissioner Stenerson said that one of the things they tend to use with venues is an 
Operational Plan. That means they have assessed the individual and how they are planning on 
doing their plan. If a CUP is used on any of the requests, that means the next person that comes 
can continue the business. If an IUP is used, once a property is sold, it gives the Board the 
power to review and make sure the new owners have the same standards as the previous 
owners. We might want to consider strictly the IUP for that reason. 

Commissioner Miller indicated that he believes that staff needs the flexibility of the CUP in 
there also. In case something is being developed that an IUP would not be appropriate for. He 
indicated that when Wedding Venues come up in particular, IUP is the direction he will want 
to go.   

Commissioner Fox said he would reiterate that because Staff does a good job but they also 
have to remember to work with the Board. As far as seconding what Commissioner Miller 
moved, he would be willing to amend the motion to give the option for a CUP/IUP.  Then the 
Board always has the option to use whichever one they think fits best for the particular 
request.   

Motion carried 5:1 (Commissioner Stenerson opposed) 

Other Discussion 

Pierret stated that there will be another Public Hearing on the ordinance amendments on July 
18th with the County Board. Notices will be sent out and will be posted on the County website.   
11ADJOURN: Motion by Commissioner Huneke and seconded by Commissioner Fox to 
adjourn the Planning Commission Meeting at 7:42 p.m.  

Motion carried 6:0 



Page 14 
PLANNING ADVISORY COMMISSION  

GOODHUE COUNTY, MN   
 June 15, 2023 MEETING MINUTES  

DRAFT 
________________________________________________________________ 

 

Respectfully Submitted, 

Patty Field, Zoning Administrative Assistant 

 

 

 

MOTIONS 

1 APPROVE the PAC meeting agenda 
Motion carried 5:0 
2 APPROVE the previous month’s meeting minutes 
Motion carried 5:0  
3 Motion to close the Public Hearing 
Motion carried 6:0  
4 DENY the request for a Map Amendment  
Motion carried 5:1 (Miller dissented)  
5 Motion to close the Public Hearing 
Motion carried 6:0  
6 APPROVE the request for a Preliminary and Final Plat 
Motion carried 6:0 
7 Motion to close the Public Hearing 
Motion carried 5:0 (Huneke abstained)  
8 APPROVE the request for a Preliminary and Final Plat  
Motion carried 5:0 (Huneke abstained) 
9 Motion to close the Public Hearing 
Motion carried 6:0  
10 APPROVE the request for amendments to Article 10, 11, and 20 
Motion carried 5:1 (Stenerson opposed) 
11 ADJOURN.  Motion to adjourn the meeting 
Motion carried 6:0 

                                                           



 
 

 

“To effectively promote the safety, health, and well-being of our residents” 
www.co.goodhue.mn.us 

Page 1 of 4 

Environmental Health | Land Surveying | GIS 
Telephone:  651.385.3223 

Fax:  651.385.3098 

Lisa M. Hanni, L.S. Director 
Building | Planning | Zoning  
Telephone: 651.385.3104 
Fax: 651.385.3106 

Goodhue County Land Use Management 
Goodhue County Government Center | 509 West Fifth Street | Red Wing, Minnesota 55066 

 County Surveyor / Recorder 

To:  Planning Advisory Commission 
From: Land Use Management  
Meeting Date: July 17, 2023 
Report date: July 7, 2023 
 
PUBLIC HEARING: Request for Map Amendment (Rezone)  
Request, submitted by Mitchell Rigelman (Applicant) on behalf of Wesley F Moechnig Et Al 
(Owner) to rezone 1.22 acres from A-3 (Urban Fringe District) to R-1 (Suburban Residence 
District). 
 
Application Information: 
Applicant: Mitchell Rigelman (Applicant) on behalf of Wesley F Moechnig Et Al (Owner) 
Address of zoning request: Territorial Road Lake City, MN 55041 
Parcel: 32.200.0310 
Legal Description: Part of the SE ¼ of the NW ¼ of Section 31 TWP 112 Range 12 in Florence 
Township 
Township: Florence Township approved the proposed split and rezoning request in 2022.  
 
Attachments and links: 
Application and submitted project summary  
Site Map(s) 
Project Review (Rezone) 
Goodhue County Zoning Ordinance (GCZO): 
http://www.co.goodhue.mn.us/DocumentCenter/View/2428  
 
Overview:  
The Applicant (Mitchell Rigelman) has submitted a “change of zone” request for 1.22 acres of parcel 
32.200.0310 in Florence Township. The A-3 (Urban Fringe District) zoned parcel currently contains 
approximately 53.42 acres with the 1.22 acres proposed to be rezoned to R-1 (Suburban Residence 
District) separated from the majority of the parcel by parcels 32.200.0320 and 32.200.0330.  

The current A-3 zoning classification does not allow the 1.22 acres to be split from the 53.42-acre 
parcel due to the 35-acre minimum lot size requirement. Properties in the A-3 District are not 
considered buildable for any structures if they are under 35 acres. If rezoned to R-1, the 1.22 acres 
could be split from the remaining 52 acres and would be considered an eligible building site.  

Project Summary: 
Property Information: 
 The subject property consists of a single, non-contiguous parcel comprising 53.42 acres. Most of 

the parcel consists of tillable land with wooded bluff areas to the west. The 1.22 acres in question 
are vacant and not currently used for agriculture purposes.  

 Adjacent properties are zoned A-3, A-2 (General Agriculture District) in section 36 of Florence 
Township, and R-1 (Suburban Residence District) as part of the Golf View Ridge First Addition. 
All land adjacent to the 1.22 acres to be rezoned is currently zoned A-3.  

 The subject property is surrounded by medium-density residential development and the Lake 
City Golf Course. Land in the city of Lake City is less than ½ mile to the west.  

 The property is not located within a Historic Preservation District. It is not anticipated that any 



“To effectively promote the safety, health, and well-being of our residents” 
www.co.goodhue.mn.us 

Page 2 of 4 

historic amenities will be negatively impacted as a result of the proposed rezone.  

 No portions of the property are designated Shoreland or Floodplain.  
 

Proposed Uses: 
 If rezoned, the 1.22-acre parcel would be eligible for one dwelling site due to R-1 District’s 1-acre 

minimum lot size provisions.  

Accessibility: 
 The Right-of-Way authority for Territorial Road is Florence Township. Future driveway access 

onto Territorial Road would need to be approved by the Township prior to construction.    

Planning Information: 
 The R-1 District is intended to provide a district that defines and protects areas suitable for low to 

medium-density residential development as the principal use of the land and to allow related 
facilities desirable for a residential environment. It is also intended that the district allows varying 
densities of development in accordance with the ability to provide water and sewer facilities. 

 The 1.22 acres to be rezoned is currently vacant land. There are no registered Feedlots within 
1,000 feet or 96% OFFSET odor annoyance-free distance.  

 The Prime Farmland Rating for Agriculture is as follows:  

Soil Name Slope Amount 
(acres) 

% of 
Total 

Prime Farmland Rating 

Burkhardt Sandy Loam 0-6% 1.1 100% 
 

Farmland of Statewide Importance 

 

Goodhue County Comprehensive Plan: 

 The proposed rezone appears compatible with the goals and objectives of the Goodhue County 
Comprehensive Plan:  

“Support the establishment of rural residences to provide rural living opportunities in the 
unincorporated areas of Goodhue County” 

“Work with Townships to evaluate and designate suitable residential sites that minimize 
conflicts with agricultural and rural uses” 

 
Staff Recommendation: 
LUM Staff recommends the Planning Advisory Commission:  

• adopt the staff report into the record;  
• accept the application, testimony, exhibits, and other evidence presented into the record; and 

 

recommend that the County Board of Commissioners APPROVE the map amendment request from 
Mitchell Rigelman (Applicant) on behalf of Wesley F Moechnig Et Al (Owner) to rezone 1.22 acres 
from A-3 (Urban Fringe District) to R-1 (Suburban Residence District).  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 







 
 

 

“To effectively promote the safety, health, and well-being of our residents” 
www.co.goodhue.mn.us 

Page 1 of 2 

Environmental Health | Land Surveying | GIS 
Telephone:  651.385.3223 

Fax:  651.385.3098 

Lisa M. Hanni, L.S. Director 
Building | Planning | Zoning  
Telephone: 651.385.3104 
Fax: 651.385.3106 

Goodhue County Land Use Management 
Goodhue County Government Center | 509 West Fifth Street | Red Wing, Minnesota 55066 

 County Surveyor / Recorder 

Project Review per Article 3, Section 2, Subd. 5-10: 
Subd. 5  A.   The names and addresses of the petitioner or petitioners and their signatures to the 

petition.  See application  
B.  Survey information: See application 
C.  The current and proposed district:  A3 to R1 
D.  The current use and the proposed use of the land.  The 1.22 acres to be rezoned 

are currently vacant and are not used for agricultural purposes.  
E. The reason for the requested change of zoning district. In order to create a 

building site and split 1.22 acres of land from 53 acres in the A3 District 
where there is a 35 acre minimum lot size. The split cannot be approved 
unless the 1.22 acres is rezoned to R-1 where there is a 1 acre minimum lot 
size.    

F.  A copy of the soil map showing the soils types within the proposed boundary and the 
surrounding area. A soils map for the site has been prepared. 
G.  Prime Farmland Rating of the soil types in F. 
 The Prime Farmland Rating for Agriculture is as follows: 

Soil Name Slope Amount 
(acres) 

% of 
Total 

Prime Farmland Rating 

Burkhardt Sandy Loam 0-6% 1.1 100% 
 

Farmland of Statewide Importance 

 
H.  A statement of how the requested change is compatible with the Goodhue County Comprehensive 
Plan including but not limited to the following: 

1.  The environmental impacts of the proposed use of land on the: 
a.    Groundwater 
b. Natural plant and animal communities 
c.    Existing trees and vegetation 
d. Bluffland stability 
e.    Shoreland stability 

The 1.22 acres to be rezoned does not contain any sensitive 
enfironmental features such as bluffs or shoreland. Septic systems 
must be permitted with the County Environmental Health 
Department and adhere to applicable rules and regulations for siting 
and design. A septic professional will need to analyze the site to 
prepare a permit.  

2.  The compatibility with surrounding land uses 
Surrounding land uses include medium-density residential, the 
Lake City Golf Course, wooded blufflands, tilled cropland, and land 
within the City of Lake City.  

3. The physical and visual impacts on any scenic or historic amenities within or 
surrounding the proposed parcel. 
It is not anticipated that any visual or historic amenities will be 
negatively impacted as a result of the proposed rezone.  

Subd. 6 The housing density of the affected Section 
 Section 31 TWP 112 R12 is an A-3 zoned section with some areas zoned R-1. 

Dwelling density in the A-3 District is limited to one dwelling per 35 acres. 
There are currently 19 dwellings in the A-3 zoned portions of the section, only 



“To effectively promote the safety, health, and well-being of our residents” 
www.co.goodhue.mn.us 

Page 2 of 2 

one of which is on a parcel 35 acres or more. There are 14 dwellings in the R-1 
portion of the section which is part of the Golf View Ridge First Addition plat.   

Subd. 7 The impact on any surrounding agricultural uses 
The property is not currently used for agricultural purposes. There are no 
feedlots within 1,000 feet or 96% OFFSET odor annoyance free rating of the 
property. There is land used for cropland in the vicinity however the rezoning 
would not affect any land currently used for agriculture.  

Subd. 8 The impact on the existing transportation infrastructure 
The Applicant’s property is accessed off of Territorial Road (asphalt surface). 
Any new access points would need to be approved by the road authority, 
Florence Township.  

Subd. 9 The impact on surrounding zoning districts 
 The 1.22 acres and all surrounding land is zoned A-3 Urban Fringe.  
Subd. 10 The cumulative effect and compatibility of the requested zoning change on the affected 

Township and any cities located within 2 miles of the proposed parcel. 
Rezoning the subject parcel to R1 does not appear to have negative cumulative 
effects on the immediate surrounding area or the City of Lake City. The 
surrounding area is used primarily for medium-density residential among 
some cropland and the Lake City Golf Course.  

Subd. 11. Additional information as may be requested by the Planning Commission or zoning staff. 







Map Unit Legend

Map Unit Symbol Map Unit Name Acres in AOI Percent of AOI

N623B Burkhardt sandy loam, 0 to 6 
percent slopes

1.1 100.0%

Totals for Area of Interest 1.1 100.0%

Map Unit Descriptions
The map units delineated on the detailed soil maps in a soil survey represent the 
soils or miscellaneous areas in the survey area. The map unit descriptions, along 
with the maps, can be used to determine the composition and properties of a unit.

A map unit delineation on a soil map represents an area dominated by one or more 
major kinds of soil or miscellaneous areas. A map unit is identified and named 
according to the taxonomic classification of the dominant soils. Within a taxonomic 
class there are precisely defined limits for the properties of the soils. On the 
landscape, however, the soils are natural phenomena, and they have the 
characteristic variability of all natural phenomena. Thus, the range of some 
observed properties may extend beyond the limits defined for a taxonomic class. 
Areas of soils of a single taxonomic class rarely, if ever, can be mapped without 
including areas of other taxonomic classes. Consequently, every map unit is made 
up of the soils or miscellaneous areas for which it is named and some minor 
components that belong to taxonomic classes other than those of the major soils.

Most minor soils have properties similar to those of the dominant soil or soils in the 
map unit, and thus they do not affect use and management. These are called 
noncontrasting, or similar, components. They may or may not be mentioned in a 
particular map unit description. Other minor components, however, have properties 
and behavioral characteristics divergent enough to affect use or to require different 
management. These are called contrasting, or dissimilar, components. They 
generally are in small areas and could not be mapped separately because of the 
scale used. Some small areas of strongly contrasting soils or miscellaneous areas 
are identified by a special symbol on the maps. If included in the database for a 
given area, the contrasting minor components are identified in the map unit 
descriptions along with some characteristics of each. A few areas of minor 
components may not have been observed, and consequently they are not 
mentioned in the descriptions, especially where the pattern was so complex that it 
was impractical to make enough observations to identify all the soils and 
miscellaneous areas on the landscape.

The presence of minor components in a map unit in no way diminishes the 
usefulness or accuracy of the data. The objective of mapping is not to delineate 
pure taxonomic classes but rather to separate the landscape into landforms or 
landform segments that have similar use and management requirements. The 
delineation of such segments on the map provides sufficient information for the 
development of resource plans. If intensive use of small areas is planned, however, 
onsite investigation is needed to define and locate the soils and miscellaneous 
areas.

Custom Soil Resource Report

11



















 
 

 

“To effectively promote the safety, health, and well-being of our residents” 
www.co.goodhue.mn.us 

Page 1 of 3 

Environmental Health | Land Surveying | GIS 
Telephone:  651.385.3223 

Fax:  651.385.3098 

Lisa M. Hanni, L.S. Director 
Building | Planning | Zoning  
Telephone: 651.385.3104 
Fax: 651.385.3106 

Goodhue County Land Use Management 
Goodhue County Government Center | 509 West Fifth Street | Red Wing, Minnesota 55066 

 County Surveyor / Recorder 

To:  Planning Commission 
From: Land Use Management  
Meeting Date: July 17, 2023 
Report date:  July 7, 2023 
 
PUBLIC HEARING: Request for IUP for up to Four Animal Units on a 5 Acre Parcel 
Zoned R-1 (Suburban Residence District) 
Request submitted by Gary Arntson (Owner) for an Interim Use Permit to allow up to 4 
horses to be kept on a parcel zoned R-1, Suburban Residence District  
 
Application Information: 
Applicant: Gary Arntson (owner) 
Address of zoning request: 37533 County 14 BLVD Dennison, MN 55018 
Parcel(s): 45.024.1901 and 45.024.1100 
Abbreviated Legal: Part of the NW ¼ of the SE ¼ of Section 24 TWP 111 Range 18 in Warsaw 
Township 
Township Information: Warsaw Township signed acknowledgment of the proposal on June 12, 2023, 
with no additional comments 
Zoning District: R-1 (Suburban Residence District) 
 
Attachments and links: 
Application and submitted project summary  
Site Map(s) 
Goodhue County Zoning Ordinance (GCZO): 
http://www.co.goodhue.mn.us/DocumentCenter/View/2428  
 
Background:  
Goodhue County amended Article 20 of the Zoning Ordinance “Table of Uses” in 2019 to add a 
provision so that properties zoned R-1 (Suburban Residence District) could have livestock animals 
such as chickens, horses, sheep, etc. on parcels 1 acre or greater as an Interim Use. Animals are 
limited to one animal unit per acre up to 9.9 animal units because property owners must register as a 
Feedlot at 10 animal units. Feedlots are not a permitted use in the R-1 District. Previously, a 
maximum of 3 horses had been allowed in the R-1 District on parcels 5 acres or larger with a 
Conditional or Interim Use Permit.  

The Applicant desires to have up to 4 horses on their property currently zoned R-1. The Applicant 
owns two contiguous parcels containing approximately 6.4 acres therefore up to 6 horses could be 
kept on the properties.  

Goodhue County Zoning Ordinance: Article 4 Conditional/Interim Uses 
No CUP/IUP shall be recommended by the County Planning Commission unless said Commission specifies 
facts in their findings for each case which establish the proposed CUP/IUP will not be injurious to the use and 
enjoyment of other property in the immediate vicinity for the purposes already permitted, will not 
substantially diminish and impair property values within the immediate vicinity, will not impede the normal 
and orderly development and improvement of surrounding vacant property for uses predominant to the 
area, that adequate measures have been, or will be, taken to provide utilities, access roads, drainage, and 
other necessary facilities, to provide sufficient off-street parking and loading space, to control offensive odor, 
fumes, dust, noise, and vibration so that none of these will constitute a nuisance, and to control lighted signs 
and other lights in such a manner that no disturbance to neighboring properties will result. 



“To effectively promote the safety, health, and well-being of our residents” 
www.co.goodhue.mn.us 

Page 2 of 3 

Project Summary:  
Property / Building Information: 
• The subject property consists of two contiguous parcels comprising approximately 6.4 acres.  

 The property is bordered by R-1 zoned parcels to the west and north across County 9 BLVD. Land 
zoned A-2 (General Agriculture District) is located on all sides of the property. Property owners 
in A-2 Districts are permitted to have up to 9.9 animal units without a permit and may apply for 
Feedlot permits to exceed that number.  

 The Applicant obtained a building permit for an accessory building intended to be used for the 
horses in October 2022. The Zoning Administrator approved the permit subject to the condition 
that no animals be kept in the building until an IUP is approved for animals in an R-1 zone.    

 The property contains a single-family dwelling and the new accessory building. There are two 
existing fenced-in areas for the horses, one north of the dwelling and one south of the dwelling. A 
fenced riding ring is proposed to be installed on the property if the IUP is approved.   

 Manure will be handled appropriately by storing it on-site in an area that will not be a nuisance 
and regularly having the manure picked up to be used as fertilizer.  

 There is the potential for some odor to be caused by having animals on site. This is not 
uncharacteristic of other agricultural uses in the area. There are 4 properties with registered 
Feedlots within ½ mile of the property. The nearest dwellings are approximately 100 feet from 
the Applicant’s west property line. These dwellings are also zoned R-1 and are buffered from the 
area proposed for horses by a wooded bluff.   

Draft Findings of Fact: 
The following staff findings shall be amended to reflect concerns conveyed during the PAC meeting 
and public hearing. 
 

1. The proposal to keep 4 horses on the property does not appear injurious to the use and 
enjoyment of properties in the immediate vicinity for uses already permitted, nor would it 
substantially diminish and impair property values in the immediate vicinity. The surrounding 
area is primarily agricultural land where animal husbandry and feedlots are common.  

2. The proposal to have 4 horses is not anticipated to impede the normal and orderly development 
or improvement of surrounding vacant property for uses predominant to the area. The proposal 
does not appear incompatible with adjacent agricultural land uses. The Applicant cannot register 
as a Feedlot in the R-1 District. 

3. A review of the Applicant’s submitted project summary indicates adequate utilities, access roads, 
drainage, and other necessary facilities are available to accommodate the proposal.  

4. The facility has ample room to provide sufficient off-street parking and loading space to serve the 
use and meet the Goodhue County Zoning standards.  

5. The submitted plans detail adequate measures to prevent or control offensive odor, fumes, dust, 
noise, and vibration so that none of these will constitute a nuisance. Odor will be addressed by 
keeping pen areas clean and removing manure regularly from the area.  

Staff recommendation is based on the review of the submitted application and project area prior to 
the public hearing. 
 

Staff Recommendation: 
LUM Staff recommends the Planning Advisory Commission  

• adopt the staff report into the record;  
• adopt the findings of fact;  
• accept the application, testimony, exhibits, and other evidence presented into the record; and 

 

Recommend the County Board of Commissioners APPROVE the request submitted by Gary 
Arntson (owner) to keep no more than 4 horses on parcels zoned R-1 Suburban Residence District.  
Subject to the following condition: 

1. This IUP shall expire upon a change in ownership of the property.  





















 
 

 

“To effectively promote the safety, health, and well-being of our residents” 
www.co.goodhue.mn.us 

Page 1 of 6 

Environmental Health | Land Surveying | GIS 
Telephone:  651.385.3223 

Fax:  651.385.3098 

Lisa M. Hanni, L.S. Director 
Building | Planning | Zoning  
Telephone: 651.385.3104 
Fax: 651.385.3106 

Goodhue County Land Use Management 
Goodhue County Government Center | 509 West Fifth Street | Red Wing, Minnesota 55066 

 County Surveyor / Recorder 

To:  Planning Advisory Commission 
From: Land Use Management  
Meeting Date: July 17, 2023 
Report date: July 7, 2023 
 
PUBLIC HEARING: Request for CUP for an Event Center and Resort Facility (Villa 
Maria Ventures, LLC (John Rupp, Chief Manager)) 
Request for a Conditional Use Permit (CUP) to establish an Event Center and Resort Facility. The 
proposal includes remodeling existing structures and constructing additions to provide spaces for 
lodging, cottages, on-site restaurant, and event spaces.  
 
Application Information: 
Applicant(s): Villa Maria Ventures, LLC (John Rupp, Chief Manager) 
Address of zoning request: 29847 County 2 BLVD Frontenac, MN 55026 
PID(s): 32.160.0040 and 32.012.0400 
Abbreviated Legal: Blocks C, D, and E of Garrards South Extension plat and part of the SE ¼ of the 
SW ¼ of Section 12 TWP 112 Range 13 in Florence Township 
Zoning District: CR (Commercial Recreational District) 
Township: Florence Township approved a CUP for the use in July 2022.  
 
Attachments and links: 
Application and submitted project summary  
Site Map(s) 
Goodhue County Zoning Ordinance (GCZO): 
http://www.co.goodhue.mn.us/DocumentCenter/View/2428  
Goodhue County Assembly Controls Ordinance 
 
Summary/Background:  
The Applicant, Villa Maria Ventures, LLC (John Rupp, Chief Manager) is requesting a Conditional 
Use Permit to establish an event center and resort facility on the “Villa Maria” property in Frontenac. 

In January 2023, the Goodhue County Board approved an Interim Use Permit for Villa Maria with 
several conditions to be met by June 23, 2023. The IUP expired 6 months from the date of approval 
if the conditions were not met by June 23rd. The Applicant has met all IUP conditions and is required 
to obtain Conditional Use Permit approval from the Planning Commission and County Board to 
continue operations after the 6 month expiration date. Most of the project details have not changed 
since January 2023.  

During the past 6 months, staff has worked with the Applicant to allow activities in the main Marian 
Hall building. The Applicant has submitted various documents for Environmental Health and 
Building Official review. Several of the conditions from the January 2023 IUP will remain the same 
such as no hosting events in portions of buildings that are not approved by the Building Official, 
submitting appropriate septic documentation and contracts, and maintaining appropriate licenses 
with the State of Minnesota for food, alcohol, and lodging.  

Goodhue County Zoning Ordinance: Article 4 Conditional/Interim Uses 

No CUP/IUP shall be recommended by the County Planning Commission unless said Commission 
specifies facts in their findings for each case which establish the proposed CUP/IUP will not be 
injurious to the use and enjoyment of other property in the immediate vicinity for the purposes 



“To effectively promote the safety, health, and well-being of our residents” 
www.co.goodhue.mn.us 

Page 2 of 6 

already permitted, will not substantially diminish and impair property values within the 
immediate vicinity, will not impede the normal and orderly development and improvement of 
surrounding vacant property for uses predominant to the area, that adequate measures have been, 
or will be, taken to provide utilities, access roads, drainage and other necessary facilities, to 
provide sufficient off-street parking and loading space, to control offensive odor, fumes, dust, noise 
and vibration so that none of these will constitute a nuisance, and to control lighted signs and other 
lights in such a manner that no disturbance to neighboring properties will result. 
 

PROJECT SUMMARY: 
Property Information: 
 The subject property consists of 2 parcels comprising approximately 63 acres. Both parcels are 

currently zoned CR (Commercial Recreational District) after being rezoned in 2018 from A2 
(General Agriculture District).  

 Surrounding land uses include undeveloped prairie, forest, and water resources (Frontenac State 
Park) to the east, south, and west as well as medium-density residential to the north (Frontenac).  

 Access to the site is located off of County 2 BLVD (asphalt surface) on the east side of the 
property. The access is within a half-mile of US HWY 61. 

Facilities: 
“Marian Hall” (AREA – A): 
 The 4-story former dormitory will be remodeled into a boutique hotel with a total of 33 public 

units and 2 staff units. Each hotel unit has replaced 3 to 4 existing smaller dorm rooms on floors 
one, two, and three. The fourth-floor attic space will be converted into two larger hotel units. 
Each hotel unit will have a private bathroom, kitchenette, fireplace, and washer/dryer. 

o The February 2023 floorplans have been amended to add another hotel unit on the 
main floor. This unit replaces an office/conference room area shown on the original 
drawings.  

 The former chapel area on the main level will be used as an event space with a lounge area and 
bar attached capable of holding approximately 300 occupants. A deck is proposed to be 
constructed west of the lounge area.  

 The second and third levels will contain hotel units with a conference room/library on each floor.  

 The lower level will be remodeled to include retail space and event space for approximately 125 
occupants. There is an existing commercial kitchen on the lower level that will be used for events 
held in this building. 

o The basement level retail space has been reduced to include only one retail gift shop. 
The second retail space is now proposed to be used as storage space.  

 The basement-level gymnasium will be used as additional event space for approximately 175 
occupants. A hallway from the basement level connects to an indoor pool building that will be 
available for guests. The Applicant has proposed various structural additions to the pool building.   

 
“Glengarda Cottage” (AREA – B): 
 The Glengarda cottage is a residential-style structure located on the east side of County 2 BLVD. 

The Applicant has remodeled and upgraded the existing structure for use as a short-term rental 
unit and use as a “bride’s cottage” during wedding events. 
 

“Starwood Lodge” and “Wildwood Cottage” (AREA – C): 
 The Starwood Lodge is proposed to be remodeled to include a second “bride’s cottage” and a 

“groom’s cottage”. Both areas will also be used as short-term rentals. 
  

 The Wildwood Cottage is proposed to be remodeled to be used as a second “groom’s cottage” and 
will be used as a short-term rental.  

  



“To effectively promote the safety, health, and well-being of our residents” 
www.co.goodhue.mn.us 

Page 3 of 6 

“Ursuline Hall” (AREA – D): 
 Ursuline Hall is proposed to be used as an event hall with structure additions to include 

additional seating areas, a lounge area, a bar, and a commercial kitchen to be used for a public 
restaurant. The building can currently hold about 100 occupants and the proposed additions 
would increase the maximum capacity to approximately 325 occupants.  

“Woodhaven Lodge” and Barn (AREA – E): 
 The existing Woodhaven Lodge will be remodeled for use as another event space. There is an 

existing commercial kitchen that will be used for events. Additions are proposed to add 
additional event space and an ADA-accessible ramp to the building. 

 The existing barn north of the Woodhaven Lodge will be remodeled for use as a social space with 
a bar and mezzanine level. The capacity is proposed to be about 100 occupants.   

Outdoor Spaces: 
 Outdoor space on the property is also proposed to be used for various events. The area outside 

the Woodhaven Lodge and Barn may be used for various activities including softball, volleyball, 
etc. An event tent may be used outside of the Woodhaven Lodge for ceremonies and events. The 
area outside Ursuline Hall will be used as an outdoor terrace, garden area, and outdoor lawn 
games. An event tent or pavilion may be used outside Ursuline Hall for outdoor weddings and 
events.  

 The property will contain various nature trails for guest use and the Applicant has begun work to 
restore the White Oak Savannah Forest in cooperation with the Minnesota DNR. There is a small 
vineyard on the property that may be expanded and various landscaping efforts will be ongoing. 

Front Lawn: 
 The Applicant desires to someday host a summer music festival on the front lawn area of the 

property. It is anticipated these events would exceed 500 attendees and be subject to the 
County’s Assembly Controls Ordinance requirement for a permit from the County Board. The 
Assembly Controls Ordinance includes an evaluation of public safety measures, sanitary facilities, 
food and alcohol provisions, parking, noise, and traffic.  

Future Plans (AREAS – F & G): 
 The Applicant has included various notes on proposals including additional hotel space, 

condominium platting, a spa complex, and more. The Planning Commission is not being asked to 
approve these uses as detailed plans have not been submitted. These uses will require a CUP 
amendment if pursued.  

Employees: 
 The Applicant anticipates the need for approximately 80 full and part-time employees. Two staff 

sleeping units have been proposed on the lower level of Marian Hall.  
 
Hours of Operation: 
 Hours of operation for the hotel are proposed to be year-round 24 hours per day. Events would 

take place mainly on weekends but may occur any day of the week ending no later than midnight.  
 
Lighting: 
 The Marian Hall building will be subtly illuminated along with “dark sky” landscape lighting and 

downlit path and road lighting will be installed around the property.  
 
Traffic and Parking: 
 The site has historically experienced higher traffic flows associated with previously held retreat 

events and conferences. The volume of traffic is anticipated to increase given the Applicant’s 
proposed scale of events and the potential for multiple venues to be active in addition to the hotel 
area. Traffic will primarily approach the property from the south on County 2 BLVD which 
directly connects to US HWY 61. Existing transportation infrastructure appears capable of 
supporting the proposed use. Guests will be encouraged to access the site from the south to limit 
traffic through residential areas in Old Frontenac and Frontenac Station.  
 



“To effectively promote the safety, health, and well-being of our residents” 
www.co.goodhue.mn.us 

Page 4 of 6 

 The driveway has numerous locations for delivery traffic and guests to turn around to aid with 
traffic circulation on site. The driveway (asphalt) is approximately 20 feet wide allowing vehicles 
to bypass each other to keep traffic flowing off of County 2 BLVD. Adequate emergency vehicle 
access is available to service the facility. 

 Several parking areas exist on site. There are 70 parking stalls (paved) immediately east of 
Marian Hall near the entrance. There are 46 stalls available west of Marian Hall in the location of 
the old tennis courts. The Applicant intends to expand this parking area to provide additional 
parking for event guests.  

According to GCZO Article 11, Section 16 minimum off-street parking provisions for “Hotels” 
shall be 1 parking space for each 2 guest rooms (33 rooms), plus 1 additional space for every 3 
employees (80 employees). A minimum of 44 spaces are required for the hotel and employees. 
Mixed occupancy buildings require at least 2 spaces per dwelling unit. The short-term 
rentals/bride’s/groom’s cottages will require at least 10 spaces. Dance halls, assembly halls 
without fixed seats, and similar uses require one space per each 4 people allowed in the 
maximum occupancy load as established by the Fire Marshall. These calculations will be 
performed during the building permit and inspection processes for the various buildings. 
Occupancy numbers will be recalculated for any building additions or changes of use. 
Additional parking stalls may be required on-site as buildings are expanded and uses changed 
(i.e. changing Ursuline Hall to a public restaurant). There is ample room on the property to 
accommodate additional parking spaces.  

 Traffic and parking associated with events exceeding 500 guests would be reviewed on an 
individual basis through the Goodhue County Assembly Controls Ordinance licensing process. It 
is anticipated that off-site parking would be utilized for some larger events and a shuttle service 
would be provided for guests.  

Utilities: 
 The Applicant has been working with a professional septic contractor to assess the existing septic 

system. It is anticipated SSTS upgrades will be needed in the future. The SSTS may also require 
the review and approval of appropriate permits by the Minnesota Pollution Control Agency 
(MPCA) in the future. The Applicant has provided County staff various information from their 
contractor as required by the January IUP. The County Sanitarian has reviewed this information 
and has prepared an operating permit with several conditions.  
 

 Solid waste disposal services will be provided locally. Any hazardous materials or fluids 
generated shall be properly disposed of. 

 All wells will need to be tested and results submitted to and approved by the Minnesota 
Department of Health according to public lodging rules and regulations before commencing 
operations.  

Signage: 
 The Applicant is proposing to install one sign near the property’s main entrance. Directional 

signage will also be added for property navigation.  
 
Safety and Security Measures: 
 A new security system will be installed with comprehensive grounds and building video 

surveillance allowing the site to be monitored 24 / 7 remotely. 

 Minnesota Building Code requires all places of assembly holding 300 or more occupants to 
install a fire suppression system. The Applicant has indicated plans for a fire suppression system 
are forthcoming and has submitted construction drawings noting this addition. The Building 
Official will review these plans upon submittal to issue appropriate permits.   

 Until a Certificate of Occupancy is approved by the Building Official for the Marian Hall building, 
all events must be held outdoors, within other structures on the property that have not been 
structurally altered or on the main level of the Marian Hall building as allowed by the Building 
Official in May 2023. This area of Marian Hall is depicted in Exhibit A attached to this report.   

Landscaping/Drainage: 



“To effectively promote the safety, health, and well-being of our residents” 
www.co.goodhue.mn.us 

Page 5 of 6 

 Some grading will be necessary to enlarge the parking lot in the location of the existing tennis 
courts and to establish walking trails on the property. The property is located within an 
environmentally sensitive area therefore any proposed grading/excavation must be reviewed and 
approved by the Zoning Administrator and the Goodhue Soil and Water Conservation District 
before work begins. The Minnesota DNR should also review plans where applicable. 

 The Applicant has proposed to create multiple pond areas, including a pond on State of 
Minnesota property across County 2 BLVD. Excavation and grading plans for these ponds must 
be reviewed and approved by the State of Minnesota, Goodhue Soil and Water Conservation 
District, and Zoning Administrator before beginning work.  

Dust/Noise/Odor/Fumes: 
 No nuisance dust, odor, or fumes are anticipated to be generated with the proposal. Noise 

generated during events is planned to be confined generally within the event venues to minimize 
impacts to neighboring properties. The property is heavily wooded and surrounded on 3 sides by 
Frontenac State Park which naturally buffers potential noise impacts to adjacent property 
owners. The nearest adjacent residence (Cris and Molly Hofschulte) is directly to the north across 
Winona Street.  

 
Food & Liquor Provisions: 
 There are currently two commercial kitchens on-site (Marian Hall and Woodhaven Lodge) which 

will be upgraded as needed/required and used for events. Outside caterers may be used with 
appropriate licensure to begin operations. A commercial kitchen may be added to the Ursuline 
Hall to service events and a proposed restaurant.  

 Full-service bars will be added on various floors in Marian Hall, within Woodhaven Lodge, the 
Barn, and Ursuline Hall.  

 All required federal, state, and local licensing, and other regulatory requirements must be 
followed for the bars, kitchens, and service areas. Verification of these licenses should be 
submitted to the Zoning Administrator before beginning operations.  

 
Draft Findings of Fact: 
The following staff findings shall be amended to reflect concerns conveyed during the PAC meeting 
and public hearing. 
 

1. The proposed Event Center and Resort Facility do not appear injurious to the use and enjoyment 
of properties in the immediate vicinity for uses already permitted, nor would it substantially 
diminish and impair property values in the immediate vicinity. The property has historically been 
used for higher intensity uses such as retreats and conferences which are comparable to the 
Applicant’s proposal without producing conflicts with existing residential uses in the area.  

2. The Event Center and Resort Facility are not anticipated to impede the normal and orderly 
development and improvement of surrounding vacant property for uses predominant to the area. 
The use is proposed to meet all development standards of the Goodhue County Zoning Ordinance 
and most operations will be confined within the existing structures. The majority of the property 
shares a border with Frontenac State Park which should not be negatively impacted by the 
proposed uses. The uses appear compatible with existing adjacent land uses. 

3. A review of the Applicant’s submitted project summary indicates adequate access roads and 
drainage, and other necessary facilities are available or will be installed to accommodate the 
proposed use. Staff has received appropriate information for septic systems. The Applianct will 
need to verify all wells meet MPCA standards. Construction drawings for the fire suppression 
system must be submitted to the Building Official for review and the system installed prior to the 
Marian Hall building opening beyond the first floor event space. 

4. The submitted plans identify means and space to provide sufficient off-street parking and loading 
space to serve the proposed use and meet the Goodhue County Zoning Ordinance’s parking 
requirements.  

5. The Event Center and Resort Facility are not anticipated to produce offensive odor, fumes, dust, 



“To effectively promote the safety, health, and well-being of our residents” 
www.co.goodhue.mn.us 

Page 6 of 6 

or vibration. The distance of the site from existing nearby residences, use of indoor activity areas, 
and established vegetative buffers appear sufficient to control noise so that it will not constitute a 
nuisance. Furthermore, the Applicant’s lighting plans appear capable of controlling lights in such 
a manner that no disturbance to neighboring properties will result. 

Staff recommendation is based on the review of the submitted application and project area prior to 
the public hearing. 
 
Staff Recommendation: 
LUM Staff recommends the Planning Advisory Commission  

• adopt the staff report into the record;  
• adopt the findings of fact;  
• accept the application, testimony, exhibits, and other evidence presented into the record; and 

Recommend that the County Board of Commissioners APPROVE the request from Villa Maria 
Ventures, LLC (John Rupp, Chief Manager) for a Conditional Use Permit (IUP) to establish an Event 
Center and Resort Facility including remodeling existing structures and constructing various 
building additions to provide spaces for lodging, cottages, on-site restaurant, and event spaces.  
Subject to the following conditions: 

1. Activities shall be conducted outdoors, within buildings that have not been structurally 
altered, or in the main level event space of Marian Hall as shown in Exhibit A according to 
submitted plans, specifications, and narrative unless modified by a condition of this CUP 
until a Certificate of Occupancy is issued for the remainder of Marian Hall. Any future uses or 
structures not specified within this CUP application shall require an amended CUP 
application and another public hearing should be held by the Goodhue County Planning 
Advisory Commission;  

2. All event activities shall end no later than midnight; 

3. On-street parking and loading/off-loading shall be prohibited; 

4. Events exceeding 500 people shall obtain required permits per the Goodhue County 
Assembly Controls Ordinance; 

5. Applicant shall obtain building permit approvals for proposed remodeling and additions from 
the Goodhue County Building Permits Department prior to beginning construction; 

6. Applicant shall maintain a current Goodhue County septic system operating permit including 
abiding by all conditions within the operating permit or obtain a State Disposal System 
permit with the Minnesota Pollution Control Agency.  

7. Compliance with Goodhue County Zoning Ordinance including Article 30 CR, Commercial 
Recreational District; 

8. Compliance with all necessary State and Federal registrations, permits, licensing, and 
regulations including food, beverage, and lodging licenses from the Minnesota Department of 
Health. Verification of these licenses shall be submitted to the Zoning Administrator prior to 
hosting any events and upon request from LUM staff; and 

9. Applicant shall submit a Land Alteration Permit and associated grading/excavation plans for 
all projects disturbing 10,000 square feet or more of ground area. No grading or excavation 
shall take place without first obtaining a Land Alteration Permit from the Zoning 
Administrator and any associated permits from the Goodhue Soil and Water Conservation 
District and Minnesota DNR. Projects disturbing one acre or more of area shall obtain an 
NPDES permit from the MPCA. A copy of any NPDES permits shall be submitted to the 
Zoning Administrator prior to beginning work.  








































































